
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
The Council will listen to the public on any item on the agenda.  Under the Brown Act, Council is 

prohibited from taking action on items not on the agenda, but the matter may be referred to staff or to a 

subsequent meeting.  Each speaker will be limited to three continuous minutes, which may not be 

delegated.  These rules will be enforced but may be changed by appropriate City Council action.   

 

PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS ON THE AGENDA: 
Persons wishing to speak on any item on the agenda will be called at the time the agenda item is brought 

forward.  Persons wishing to speak on closed session items have a choice of doing so either immediately 

prior to the closed session or at the time for comments on items at the open session. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA: 
Time shall be devoted to audience participation early on the agenda.   

 
 

 

CLOSED SESSION 

 

CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL                             

  
 

Mayor Goss, Mayor Pro Tem Arizmendi, Council Member Capoccia, 

Council Member Delmar, and Council Member Harabedian 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT                                       Regarding Closed Session Items 

 

RECESS TO CLOSED SESSION REGARDING: 

 

EXISTING LITIGATION 

Pursuant to Calif. Government Code Section 54956.9 (d)(1) 

City of Gardena v. Los Angeles Regional Water Quality Control Board and State Water Resources Control 

Board, et al. Orange County Superior Court Case No. BS156342 

 

 

CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR 

Pursuant to Calif. Government Code Section 54957.6 

City Negotiators: City Manager Elaine Aguilar and Assistant City Manager Elisa Cox 

Employee Organization: Police Association 

AGENDA  

REGULAR MEETING 

SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL, 

SUCCESSOR AGENCY,  AND  

PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY 

 

Tuesday, May 10, 2016 

 

Closed Session 5:30 pm  

Open Session 6:30 pm  

 

City Hall Council Chambers 

232 W. Sierra Madre Boulevard 

Sierra Madre,  California  91024 

 

 Gene Goss, Mayor  

Rachelle Arizmendi, Mayor Pro Tem 

John Capoccia, Council Member 

Denise Delmar, Council Member 

John Harabedian, Council Member 

 

Melinda Carrillo, City Clerk  

Michael Amerio, City Treasurer 



OPEN  SESSION 
 

CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 

MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL  
 Mayor Goss, Mayor Pro Tem Arizmendi,  

Council Members Capoccia, Delmar, and Harabedian 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  AND 

INVOCATION/INSPIRATION 
 

 Council Member Denise Delmar 

REPORT OUT FROM CLOSED SESSION  

 

 City Attorney report from the closed session. 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA  Vote of the Council to proceed with City business. 
 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES  Approval of minutes from the Regular City Council 

meeting on April 26, 2016. 
 

MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL REPORTS  Council Member activities relating to City business. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT  Regarding items not on the Agenda. 
 

PRESENTATION   Swearing in of newly promoted Sierra Madre Police 

Sergeant Edward Delcoure 
 

ACTION ITEMS 

 

1. CONSENT  
 

  

 a) ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION 16-22 

OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 

APPROVING CERTAIN DEMANDS 
 

 Recommendation that the City Council approve 

Resolution 16-22 for approval of payment of City 

Warrants in aggregate amount of $278,473.40; Library 

warrants in the aggregate amount of $8,289.22, and 

payroll transfer in the aggregate amount of $306,700.26 

for fiscal year ending June 2016. 
 

 b) RESOLUTION 16-23 ESTABLISHING 

A REVISED VOLUMETRIC 

PENALTY RATE FOR WATER 

CONSUMED IN EXCESS OF 

CUSTOMERS’ WATER 

CONSERVATION GOALS 

 

 Recommendation that the City Council adopt 

Resolution 16-23 setting the new volumetric rate for 

water consumed in excess of a customer’s assigned 

water conservation goal at 2 times the Tier 4 rate per 

billing unit used in excess of the conservation target. 

 c) WILLDAN ENGINEERING 

BUILDING INSPECTION AND PLAN 

CHECK SERVICES – 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

AGREEMENT 

 

 Recommendation that the City Council enter into a 

three-year professional services agreement with Willdan 

Engineering and authorize the City Manager to execute 

the contract to Willdan for plan check services and full-

time building inspection services on a “percentage of 

fees” basis, in a form acceptable to the City Attorney. 
 

 d) PART-TIME PARAMEDIC 

PROGRAM 

 

 Recommendation that the City Council authorize a total 

of six part-time paramedics to work more than 960 

hours in Fiscal Year 2015-2016 and direct staff to study 

options for the Fire Department’s long-term 

sustainability. 

 

 e) THE AMERICAN’S WITH 

DISABILITY ACT EVALUATION 

AND TRANSITION PLAN 

 Recommendation that the City Council approve the 

expenditure necessary to participate in the  CJPIA’s 

pilot program to develop an ADA Transition Plan. 

 

 

http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=3728235
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=3728235
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=3728233
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=3728233
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=3728233
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=3728233
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=3728231
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=3728231
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=3728231
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=3728231
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=3728231
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=3728231
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=3728229
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=3728229
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=3728229
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=3728229
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=3728229
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=3728210
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=3728210
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=3728208
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=3728208
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=3728208


 f) RECOMMENDATION TO APPROVE 

AN ADDITIONAL EXPENDITURE 

OF $5,000 IN SUPPORT OF THE 

ACTIVITIES OF THE FIVE-CITIES 

ALLIANCE 

 

 Recommendation that the City Council approve an 

additional expenditure of $5,000 from General Fund 

Reserves to cover additional costs incurred by the 5-

Cities Alliance in preparing comments on the State 

Route 710 North Study Alternatives draft 

Environmental Impact Report/Statement, Cost Benefit 

Analysis, and the Southern California Association of 

Governments Regional Transportation Plan/Sustainable 

Communities Strategy Program Environmental Impact 

Report. 

 

 ITEMS FOR DISUSSION 

 

  

2. FY 2015-2016 MID YEAR BUDGET 

REVIEW; THIRD QUARTER FINANCIAL 

REPORT; CONSIDERATION OF 

RESOLUTION 16-26: ADOPTING THE 

MIDYEAR BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 

2015-2016 AND APPROPRIATING THE 

PROJECTED AMOUNTS; 

CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION 16-24 

COMBINING LIBRARY SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT AND COMMUNITY 

SERVICES DEPARTMENT AND 

AMENDING THE CLASSIFICATION PLAN 

AND SALARY MATRIX TO REPLECT 

POSTIONS IN THE COMBINED 

DEPARTMENT 
 

 Recommendation that the City Council approve 

Resolution 16-26 adopting the Fiscal Year 2015-2016 

Midyear budget and appropriating the projected 

amounts; and approve Resolution 16-24 combining the 

Library Services Department and Community Services 

Department and amending the Classification Plan and 

the Salary Matrix to reflect positions in the combined 

department. 
 

3. FISCAL YEAR 2016-2017 ASSESSMENT 

DISTRICTS – CITY ENGINEER’S REPORT 

AND CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION 

OF INTENT 16-25 

 Recommendation that the City Council adopt 

Resolution 16-25 initiating assessment proceedings for 

Assessment Districts 3, 5, CDF No. 1, the 2 sewer 

districts for Fiscal Year 2016-207, and directing the 

City Engineer to prepare and file and Engineer’s 

Report; and set a Public Hearing on said assessments 

for May 24, 2016. 
 

4. CITY CLERK COMPENSATION 

 

 Recommendation that the City Council provide 

direction. 

 

5. CITY COUNCIL LIAISON APPOINTMENTS 

AND CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTIONS 

16-27, 16-28, AND 16-29, PERTAINING TO 

APPOINTMENTS TO THE L.A. 

SANITATION DISTRICTS, SAN GABRIEL 

VALLEY COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS, 

AND CALIFORNIA JOINT POWERS 

INSURANCE AUTHORITY, 

RESPECTIVELY 

 

 Recommendation that the City Council accept the 

Mayor’s designation of City Council Members to 

various commissions/organizations/agencies, and the 

City Council adopt Resolutions 16-27, 16-28, and  

16-29. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=3728206
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=3728206
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=3728206
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=3728206
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=3728206
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=3728202
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=3728202
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=3728202
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=3728202
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=3728202
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=3728202
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=3728202
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=3728202
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=3728202
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=3728202
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=3728202
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=3728202
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=3728202
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=3728202
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=3728202
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=3728184
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=3728184
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=3728184
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=3728184
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=3728182
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=3728180
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=3728180
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=3728180
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=3728180
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=3728180
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=3728180
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=3728180
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=3728180
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=3728180


ACTION ITEMS 

Regardless of staff recommendation on any agenda item, the City Council will consider such matters, 

including action to approve, conditionally approve, reject, or continue such item.   

 

PUBLIC HEARING 

The appellant and/or applicant will each be provided a total of ten (10) minutes to address their item.  

A portion of their allotted time may be reserved for rebuttal or a summary conclusion at the close of 

public comment.  All other speakers will be limited to a total of three continuous minutes, which 

cannot be delegated.   

 

AVAILABILITY OF AGENDA MATERIALS 

Materials related to items on this agenda are available for public inspection on the City’s website at 

www.cityofsierramadre.com, and during normal business hours at City Hall, 232 W. Sierra Madre 

Blvd. and at the Sierra Madre Public Library, 440 W. Sierra Madre Blvd. 

 

LIVE BROADCASTS 

Regular City Council meetings are broadcasted live on Cable Channel 3 and rebroadcast on 

Wednesday and Saturday at 5:30 p.m. 

 

MEETING ASSISTANCE 

If you require special assistance to participate in this meeting, please call the City Manager’s office at 

(626) 355-7135 at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

The City Council will adjourn to a Regular Meeting at this same place on Tuesday, May 24, 2016 

http://www.cityofsierramadre.com/


Agenda 
Sierra Madre City Council 

Community Redevelopment Successor Agency and Public Finance Authority 
Tuesday, April 26, 2016 

6:00 p.m. Closed Session; 6:30 p.m. Open Session 
City Hall Council Chambers, 232 W. Sierra Madre Boulevard 

 
Mayor, John Capoccia, opened the Sierra Madre City Council, Community Redevelopment Successor Agency and 
Public Finance Authority Meeting at 6:00 p.m.  The Mayor asked for public comment and there was none so the 
Mayor immediately adjourned to a Closed Session.  The City Council returned from Closed Session at 6:35 p.m. and 
the Mayor opened the Open Session at 6:38 p.m.  City Clerk, Nancy Sue Shollenberger, read the Roll, noting that all 
City Council Members were present, except Council Member, Denise Delmar (Excused). 
 
CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL AND BOARD MEMBERS: 
 
Present: John Capoccia, Mayor/Board Member; Gene Goss, Mayor Pro Tem/Board Member, 

Council Members/Board Members Rachelle Arizmendi, and John Harabedian 
 
Absent: Council Member/Board Member, Denise Delmar (Excused) 
 
Also Present: Elaine Aguilar, City Manager 
 Teresa Highsmith, City Attorney 
 Bruce Inman, Director of Public Works 
 Vincent Gonzalez, Director of Planning and Community Presentation 
 Elisa Cox, Assistant City Manager 
 James Carlson, Management Analyst 
 Steve Heydorff, Fire Chief 
 Larry Giannone, Safety Director and Police Chief 
 Joe Ortiz, Captain, Sierra Madre Police Department 
 Nancy Sue Shollenberger, City Clerk 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND INVOCATION/INSPIRATION: 
 
In the absence of Council Member, Denise Delmar, Council Member, John Harabedian led the 
Pledge of Allegiance and followed with this prayer: 
 
 “Heavenly Father, we thank You for granting us this day to gather in the spirit of 

friendship and fellowship to commemorate the 101
st

 Anniversary of the Armenian 
Genocide.  As we remember the 1.5 million Armenians who perished at the hands of the 
Ottoman Turks, we remember also all past and present victims of bloodshed and 
violence, asking for Your comfort and healing for all who suffer in body, mind and spirit.  
May You grant them strength, protection, and hope for better days, bring justice to all 
peoples, and establish your love and peace in the hearts of all, for You are a gracious 
and compassionate Lord.  May the souls of all victims of man’s inhumanity to man rest 
in peace, and may You keep us all in peace under Your loving care and mercy.  Amen” 

 
REPORT OUT OF CLOSED SESSION: 
 
Conference with Labor Negotiator 
Pursuant to Calif. Government Code Section 54957.6 
City Negotiators:  City Manager Elaine Aguilar and Assistant City Manager, Elisa Cox. 
Employee Organization:  Police Association 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL, 
COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT SUCCESSOR AGENCY, AND    Page 2 of 8 
PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY 
April 26, 2016 

 
City Attorney, Teresa Highsmith, announced that the City Council met in Closed Session this 
evening to meet with the Police Association.  The City Attorney stated that direction was 
provided to Labor Negotiator, but no action was taken 
 
A lady approached the podium and asked for a standing ovation for the City Council.  Everyone 
gave them a standing ovation, and applauded the City Council. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
 
Council Member, John Harabedian moved and it was seconded by Council Member, Rachelle 
Arizmendi for approval of the Agenda as presented by staff.  The motion passed by unanimous 
voice vote. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF MARCH 22, 2016: 
 
Council Member, Rachelle Arizmendi moved and it was seconded by Mayor Pro Tem, Gene 
Goss for approval of the Minutes of March 22, 2016 as presented.  The motion passed by 
unanimous voice vote. 
 
MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL REPORTS: 
 
There was no report from any City Council Members. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:  None 
 
PRESENTATION: 
 
Council Member, John Harabedian, presented a Proclamation in Recognition of the Armenian 
Genocide to Vahe Majarian, Chair of ANCA Pasadena Chapter. 
 
Vahe Majarian, Chair of ANCA Pasadena Chapter 
Greetings Mayor Capoccia and Esteemed Members of the Sierra Madre City Council.  My 
name is Vahe Majarian and I serve as the Chairman of the Pasadena Chapter of the Armenian 
National Committee of America and we appear before you today first and foremost to thank 
you for your continued service, dedication and careful stewardship of our fair city and to thank 
you for the long-standing and meaningful relationship that you have fostered with the 
Armenian-American community and the ANCA itself. 
Though sadly, this horrible chapter in our culture’s history is left unresolved and justice has yet 
been denied as the perpetrators of these heinous atrocities have yet to recognize their crimes, 
this Council has acted boldly and done its part to right this wrong.  Through this and other 
Proclamations before it, you have spoken clearly, courageously and consistently and have 
exhibited unparalleled leadership by properly recognizing the Armenian Genocide, even when 
it’s perpetrators have not. 
Your passage of this Proclamation is deeply appreciated and profoundly meaningful to us all 
and will serve to insure that the pursuit of truth and justice marches on and that the Armenian 
Genocide is properly recognized and ultimately punished.  Thank you for your time, support 
and leadership. 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL, 
COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT SUCCESSOR AGENCY, AND   Page 3 of 8 
PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY 
April 26, 2016 

 
 
PRESENTATION: 
 
Bruce Inman, Director of Public Works, will be giving his water conservation and the 
City’s Water Quality Report at the next Regular City Council Meeting, May 10, 2016. 
 
 
1).   CONSENT CALENDAR: 
 
Elaine Aguilar, City Manager, gave the staff report for the following items: 
 

1a) WARRANTS 
 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. 16-18 “A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF SIERRA MADRE APPROVING CERTAIN DEMANDS” and approval for payment of City Warrants in the 
aggregate amount of $100,589.07; Sierra Madre Warrants in the aggregate amount of $7,975.04 and 
Payroll Transfer in the aggregate amount of $303,615.89 for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2016. 

 
1b). WARRANTS 
 

Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. 16-19 “A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL O FTHE CITY 
OF SIERRA MADRE APPROVING CERTAIN DEMANDS” and approval for payment of City Warrants in the 
aggregate amount of $576,653.92; Sierra Madre Library Warrants in aggregate amount of $3,745.85 and 
Payroll Transfer in the aggregate amount of $288,280.37 for the fiscal year ending June 20, 2016. 

 
1c). AUTHORIZATION OF PAYMENTS ON BEHALF OF PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY AND SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
 

The Authority Board will consider approving of the payments made on behalf of the Authority by the City 
for the City’s Water Fund Revenue Bonds for 1998.  In addition, the Authority Board and Successor Agency 
Board will consider ratifying the payments made on behalf of these Boards by the City for the Community 
Redevelopment Agency (CRA) Tax Increment 1998 Bonds. 

 
Staff recommends that the City Council approve the payment of $240,419.23 for the demands paid by the 
City on behalf of the Public Finance Authority and City Successor Agency. 

 
1d). RESOLUTION NO. 16-20 – CANVASS OF ELECTION APRIL 12, 2016 
 

City Clerk, Nancy Sue Shollenberger, is recommending approval of Resolution No. 16-20 “A RESOLUTION 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SIERRA MADRE, CALIFORNIA, RECITING THE FACT OF THE GENERAL 
MUNICIPAL ELECTION HELD ON APRIL 12, 2016, DECLARING THE RESULT AND SUCH OTHER MATTERS AS 
PROVIDED BY LAW”. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL, 
COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT SUCCESSOR AGENCY, AND   Page 4 of 8 
PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY 
April 26, 2016 

 
 
1e). CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION NO. 16-21 APPOINTMENT OF BELINDA JACOBS TO PART-TIME 

TEMPORARY ADMINISTRATIVE CLERK 
 

The Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act (PEPRA) made changes regarding when an employer can hire a 
retired CalPERS annuitant.  One such change is that the City Council must appoint any retired annuitant 
hired on an interim or temporary basis to provide extra help during an emergency to prevent stoppage of 
public business or to perform work of limited duration, special projects, and have specialized skills 
required to perform the needed work. 

 
The part-time Administrative Clerk position with the Police Department has become vacant.  In order to 
continue the day-to-day clerical and management support, a temporary Administrative Clerk is needed.  
Staff recommends hiring Belinda Jacobs, a CalPERS retired annuitant, on a temporary basis. 

 
Ms. Jacobs has over 20 years of experience as an Executive Secretary with the City of Pasadena, her 
experience included support for the director of Water and Power, Rose Bowl Stadium Director, and Mayor 
and City Council.   Ms. Jacobs also previously assisted the City of Sierra Madre as a temporary 
Administrative Assistant in the City Manager’s Office as well as providing administrative support for the 
Chief of Police and Fire Chief.  Ms. Jacobs’ combined experience has been valuable for the city and she is 
willing to temporarily fill this role on a part-time temporary basis and has the necessary special 
qualifications to provide the day-to-day administrative support of the Police Department during the 
recruitment process, until the position is filled. 

 
Staff is recommending the City Council adopt Resolution No. 16-21 “A RESOLUTION OF  
THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SIERRA MADRE APPOINTING BELINDA JACOBS TO PART-TIME 
TEMPORARY ADMINISTRATIVE CLERK” 

 
1f). TREASURER’S REPORT – QUARTER ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2015 
 

Attached to the Agenda was the 2
nd

 quarter of the Treasurer’s Report for the 2015-16 fiscal year. 
 
Staff is recommending that the City Council receive and file the Treasurer’s Report for the cash and 
investment portfolio for quarter ending December 30, 2015. 

 
1g). RECOMMENDATION TO AWARD A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT TO WILLDAN FOR THE DESIGN OF 

FY 2015-16 STREET IMPROVEMENTS 
 

The Public Works Department has received proposals for professional civil engineering services associated 
with the preparation of plans, specifications and estimates (PS&E) for the FY 2015-16 Street Resurfacing 
Project.   
 
Staff recommends that the City Council award a contract to Willdan in an amount not to exceed $48,758 
for professional civil engineering services for the FY 2015-16 Street Resurfacing Project. 

 
 
 
 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL, 
COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT SUCCESSOR AGENCY, AND   Page 5 of 8 
PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY 
April 26, 2016 

 
1h). NOTICES OF COMPLETION FOR PHASE 1a of 2015-16 WATER MAIN REPLCEMENT PROJECT; 
 

Staff recommends that the City Council accept the water system improvements to Idle Hour Lane and 
Skyland Drive as complete and direct staff to issue Notices of Completion to the office of the Registrar-
Recorder/County Clerk for both the Rain for Rent and the Julian DeSigio Construction, Inc. portions of the 
work. 
 
The Phase 1a construction was awarded to Julian DeSigio Construction, Inc. in an amount not to exceed 
$384,110.  Installation of temporary water mains to serve water to the effected neighborhood was 
awarded to Rain for Rent in an amount not to exceed $22,572.48.  The as-awarded project total cost was 
$406,683. 
 
The final pavement patching work associated with the replacement of the water mains in Skyland and Idle 
Hour was completed on March 1, 2016.  The temporary water mains were removed from those streets on 
February 22, 2016.  All work was inspected by senior Public Works water staff and found to be acceptable. 
 
Funding for this project was taken from the $450,000 previously budgeted (FY 2015-16) for the City’s 
second payment on the Santa Anita Diversion Project.  The final invoice from Julian DeSigio Construction 
totaled $317,735.17.  The Rain for Rent final amount was $21,716.26, bringing the project total to 
$339,451.45.  This shows a savings of about $67,232 over the original project total as awarded and allows 
$110,548 of the funds to be carried over and applied to the $450,000 that will be due next year for the 
Diversion Project. 

 
2). PRESENTATIONS: 

Presentations in recognition of City Treasurer, Richard Mays. 
 Assemblyman Chris Holden’s staff presented a Certificate of Recognition. 
 Elizabeth presented a Certificate of Recognition from Congressman Judy Chu. 

California State Senate, Carol Liu, presented a Certificate of Recognition.  They were not present so Mayor 
Capoccia read the Proclamation. 
Mayor Capoccia also read a Certificate of Recognition from Michael Antonovich’s Office. 
Susan Henderson and Carol Canterbury, from the Sierra Madre Chamber of Commerce, read a 
Proclamation and thanked Mr. May for his service. 
Lastly, and most impressive Certificate of Recognition from the City of Sierra Madre was read by Mayor 
Capoccia, and presented to Mr. Mays. 

 
3). PRESENTATIONS: 

Presentations in recognition of City Clerk, Nancy Sue Shollenberger 
 Assemblyman Chris Holden’s staff presented a Certificate of Recognition. 
 Elizabeth presented a Certificate of Recognition from Congressman Judy Chu. 

California State Senate, Carol Liu, presented a Certificate of Recognition.  They were not present so Mayor 
Capoccia read the Proclamation. 

 Mayor Capoccia also read a Certificate of Recognition from Michael Antonovich’s Office. 
Susan Henderson and Carol Canterbury, from the Sierra Madre Chamber of Commerce, presented a very 
attractive “wood plaque” and thanked City Clerk Shollenberger for her service. 
Lastly, and most impressive Certificate of Recognition from the City of Sierra Madre was read by Mayor 
Capoccia, along with being given the “City Tile”! 

  



REGULAR MEETING OF THE SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL, 
COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT SUCCESSOR AGENCY, AND   Page 6 of 8 
PUBLILC FINANCE AUTHORITY 
April 26, 2016 

 
4). PRESENTATIONS: 
 

Presentations in recognition of Mayor Pro Tempore, Gene Goss. 
Mayor Pro Tem, Gene Goss, was presented with “a one-half gavel” plaque, by Mayor Capoccia for his 
service as Mayor Pro Tem this past year. 

 
5). PRESENTATIONS: 

Mayor Pro Tem, Gene Goss, presented “a gavel on a plaque” to Mayor Capoccia for his excellent 
leadership as Mayor of Sierra Madre in 2015-2016. 

 
6). ADMINISTRATION OF THE OATH OF OFFICE TO ELECTED OFFICIALS 
 

Nancy Sue Shollenberger, City Clerk, welcomed everyone to the Reorganization of the City Council, and 
remarked how unusual this election was due to the fact that all four people elected did not have to run a 
campaign. 

 
City Clerk Shollenberger, did remark that we had a write-in candidate, Barry Gold, who ran a very 
respectful campaign and should be commended. 
 
For the old timers in Sierra Madre, in my 32 years as City Clerk I only had one other write-in candidate and 
that was Jack Grotewiel.  He and his wife lived on Skyland Drive and he built the home they were living in.  
They are both gone now. 
 
Let’s get our new elected officials elected: 
 
First, John Capoccia, had the most votes, 1,850, so we will install him first.  I trust your wife is present and 
I would invite her to join you.  She attended the City Council Meetings and supported John during his 
term.  That is to be commended.  The City Clerk followed with the Oath of Office and presented Council 
Member Capoccia with his Certificate of Election. 
 
Next, we have John Harabedian who had 1,672 votes.  Please have your wife and son, Mother and any 
other family members present to please come forward and share this happy time with you.  Council 
Member Harabedian was holding his handsome son, John while he took the Oath of Office, given by City 
Clerk Shollenberger, and the City Clerk presented Council Member Harabedian with his Certificate of 
Election. 
 
Our newly elected City Treasurer is next, Michael Amerio, please come forward with your wife, Cynthia,  
and any family members present.  Mr. Amerio received 2,137 votes.  We are looking forward to you 
getting us out of a deficit in the City.  The City Clerk followed with the Oath of Office and presented City 
Treasurer Amerio with his Certificate of Election. 

And now, a special time for me to present our new City Clerk, Melinda Carrillo.  Please come forward and 
if your sons are here, please have them join you. Ms. Carrillo received 2,119 votes. I am so thankful that 
Melinda came forward because no-one was knocking down the door to be City Clerk.  City Clerk 
Shollenberger followed with Oath of Office and presented the Certificate of Election to City Clerk Carrillo. 

Well, everyone is in order, installed and ready to begin their work.  Please join me in welcoming them to 
their elected positions.  Thank you so much. 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL, 
COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT SUCCESSOR AGENCY, AND   Page 7 of 8 
PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY 
April 26, 2016 

 
7). CITY COUNCIL REORGANIZATION 

 Mayor Capoccia opened the nomination for Mayor of Sierra Madre for FY 2016-17. 

Mayor, John Capoccia  moved for the nomination of Gene Goss for Mayor of Sierra Madre for the FY 
2016-17.  Council Member, John Harabedian seconded the motion and the Mayor announced that Gene 
Goss has been appointed Mayor of Sierra Madre for the Year 2016-17. 

 Mayor Gene Goss opened the nomination for Mayor Pro Tem of Sierra Madre for FY 2016-17. 

Council Member, John Harabedian moved for the nomination of Rachelle Arizmendi for Mayor Pro Tem 
for the FY 2016-17.  Council Member, John Capoccia seconded the motion and the Mayor announced that 
Rachelle Arizmendi  has been appointed Mayor Pro Tem of Sierra Madre for FY 2016-17. 

  Each individual assumed their new seats. 

COMMENTS FROM THE ELECTED OFFICIALS: 

Mayor, Gene Goss, gave the following Mayoral message: 

First I want to thank the Council for selecting me to be Mayor. And I wish to thank the citizens of Sierra Madre for 
supporting me two years ago in the Council election and for providing me support and encouragement for the last 
two years.  I am, indeed, honored to be your Mayor. 

I also want to thank my wife Lisa and my son for supporting me and encouraging me through this journey of public 
service. They have had to make sacrifices so that I can do this. You guys are absolutely the best! 

I’d also like to thank my family for being here. My sister in law and her husband came all the way from Huntsville, 
Alabama! My Aunt and cousins came from Palmdale and Santa Clarita. My Mother-in-law Julia is here and my 
other sister-in-law and her husband and my nieces came here from Valencia and Los Angeles. Thanks guys! It 
means a lot. 

I want to give my heart-felt thanks to my friends and supporters who are here tonight as well.  

Finally, I’d like to give a shout to my students at Long Beach City College who are watching this streamed live over 
the internet. 

The past year can be thought of as a perfect storm of challenges facing the city. This Council, under the fine 
leadership of outgoing Mayor Capoccia, rose up and met those challenges.   

*An aside – Last year I remember people in Long Beach asking me how it was going on Sierra Madre City Council 
and I would respond only partially kidding: “Well, we’re out of money and water, other than that we’re fine.” 

Water – The Council decision to inject MWD water into our spreading basins and begin pumping from our wells 
again has seemingly helped us turn the corner on our water discoloration problem and our water main leakages 
are way down.  

Finances -  The last year our City budget had to dip into reserves to keep programs and services in place owing to 
declining revenue from the defeat of the UUT measure in 2014. With the passage of Measure UUT a couple of 
weeks ago our budget will be stabilized without having to borrow from reserves. 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL, 
COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT SUCCESSOR AGENCY AND   Page 8 of 8 
PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY 
April 26, 2016 

 
 

Public Safety - With the possible prospect of contracting out with Sheriff’s Department, a number of our police 
officers left for other departments. With the passage of Measure UUT we will be able to rebuild our police 
department and maintain it in good standing, and we hope to discontinue the night time patrols by the Sheriff’s 
Department as soon as possible.  

In the coming year the Council will build on these successes. 

First, I am committed to fiscal responsibility. I can speak for our entire Council by saying that we will spend the 
public’s money prudently and efficiently. You can take that to the bank! 

Of the many issues, we will tackle two inter-related issues stand out for me: 

Infrastructure and Water Supply 

Infrastructure – We can no longer kick the can down the road. We will be having discussions this year about the 
replacement of our water mains and the repair and resurfacing of our streets. We will need extensive public input 
and feedback, so keep an eye on Council agendas. 

Water Supply – We will be discussing plans to secure a quality, independent supply of water for our city. There are 
many options to look at and, again, we will need extensive public input and feedback. 

Obviously there is much work to do, but with the can-do spirit of our citizens and a substantial reservoir of 
goodwill in this town, I believe we will continue to work together and accomplish great things. 

Folks, the glass is no longer half empty in Sierra Madre. It is half full, and my goal is to fill it to the brim. 

Thank you. 

The City Manager announced that, before adjourning, we want to take pictures, so please don’t rush out. 

ADJOURNMENT: 

Mayor, Gene Goss, announced that all business has been completed and asked for a motion to  adjourn to 
a City Hall Reception immediately following the City Council Meeting. 

Council Member, John Harabedian moved and it was seconded by Mayor Pro Tem, Rachelle Arizmendi,  
for adjournment at 7:42 p.m.  The motion passed by unanimous voice vote. 

 

       _____________________________________ 
        Gene Goss, Mayor 

Minutes taken and typed by:  Reviewed and approved by:   

    

Nancy Sue Shollenberger   Melinda Carrillo 
Retired City Clerk    City Clerk 



















































































































ATTACHMENT 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

City of Sierra Madre 
 

 
 

 

Proposal for Accessibility Services  

 

 

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA) SELF-EVALUATION AND 
TRANSITION PLAN 

 
 
 
 

 

March 24, 2016 
Updated from:    November 13, 2015 

 
Disability Access Consultants 

2243 Feather River Blvd 
Oroville, CA  95965 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  

https://www.google.com/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0CAcQjRxqFQoTCPDrkOPLjskCFcEriAoddW4NdQ&url=https://twitter.com/citysierramadre&psig=AFQjCNEzwLFKp7bKDwd17aC6JbyhjGuhrg&ust=1447545075246979


Disability Access Consultants Proposal to the City of Sierra Madre for ADA Consulting Services 1 
 

COVER LETTER                                                                          

March 24, 2016 
         
To:   Ms. Elisa Cox 
   Mr. Bruce Inman 
   Mr. Miguel Hernandez 

City of Sierra Madre 
Sierra Madre, CA   

  

Re: Americans with Disabilities (ADA) Self-Evaluation and Transition Plan 
  

Firm Information: Disability Access Consultants (DAC) 
Southern California: 17777 Center Court Drive, Suite 600, Cerritos, CA  90703 
Headquarters:  2243 Feather River Blvd, Oroville, California 95965 
   Project Manager: Barbara Thorpe, President 
   bthorpe@dac-corp.com Phone: 1-800-743-7067 
    

We appreciate the opportunity to submit our statement of qualifications and proposal for providing 
consultant services for an Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) Self-Evaluation and Transition Plan for the 
City of Sierra Madre public facilities and public rights-of-way.  

DAC has extensive experience in the evaluation of program and facility accessibility and provides a full 
continuum of Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) and accessibility services for public entities, such as the 
City of Sierra Madre.  Founded as a California corporation and woman owned business in 1998, DAC has 
provided services for the past 17 years to assist public entities to comply and implement accessibility 
requirements in accordance with the ADA, Title 24 of the California Building Code, Section 504 and related 
federal, state and local disability-related nondiscrimination laws and regulation.  DAC has conducted over 
15,000 building inspections, surveyed thousands of parks and playgrounds, thousands of miles of sidewalks 
and performed hundreds of programmatic reviews and self-evaluations to study the accessibility of 
programs, services, activities, events and related areas. DAC has a comprehensive understanding of 
applicable standards, regulations and requirements under Title II of the ADA, California Building Code and 
related state accessibility standards.  DAC has completed over a hundred similar studies.  

DAC was has also  been working on a project for the Department of Transportation in Washington, D.C. to 
develop a pilot study for potential duplication of methodologies in other geographic areas, using tools and 
standards for public rights-of-way accessibility reviews by means of a software program to update and 
manage the ADA public rights-of-way transition plan. DAC is providing recommendations for best practices 
and technologies for the DOT.  

To provide for easy management of the transition plan and documentation of compliance efforts, DAC has 
developed web-based software called DACTrak.  DACTrak is a powerful tool to manage and update the 
transition plan, project costs and document progress.  Custom reports can be printed in a variety of formats.  

This proposal is authorized by Barbara Thorpe, who is empowered to submit the bid, negotiate with the City, 
and authorized to sign a contract with the City of Sierra Madre. There are no conflicts of interest. DAC 
declares that this proposal is submitted in fair and good faith with no collusion or fraud.  

Respectfully submitted by Barbara Thorpe, President 

  

mailto:bthorpe@dac-corp.com


Disability Access Consultants Proposal to the City of Sierra Madre for ADA Consulting Services 2 
 

FIRM ORGANIZATION AND DESCRIPTION OF QUALIFICATIONS 

Disability Access Consultants was founded as a woman owned California Corporation in 1998, DAC has 
provided services for the past 17 years to assist public entities to comply and implement accessibility 
requirements in accordance with the ADA, Title 24 of the California Building Code, Section 504 and related 
federal, state and local disability-related nondiscrimination laws and regulation.  DAC has extensive 
experience in the evaluation of program and facility accessibility and provides a full continuum of Americans 
with Disabilities Act (ADA) and accessibility services for public entities, such as the City of Sierra Madre. 

As our founder, Barbara Thorpe, worked with a public entity for 19 years as the ADA Coordinator, 504 
Coordinator, and Director of Planning and Compliance, she has extensive experience working with individuals 
with disabilities and organizations representing individuals with disabilities.  In addition, she has collaborated 
with individuals with disabilities and organizations that represent individuals with disabilities in a facilitative 
manner that has benefited city governments during her work with other municipalities. Barbara and the DAC 
team members have demonstrated the ability to engage and interact with individuals and organizations to 
assist with the prioritization, long range planning and implementation of the ADA plan.  

DAC has a team of 16 staff, with our Facility Team Leader Michael Boga holding CASp Certificate #152, 
dedicated to assisting public entities, such as the City of Sierra Madre, 
with ADA compliance. DAC has a comprehensive understanding of 
applicable standards, regulations and requirement under Title II of the 
ADA, California Building Code and related state accessibility 
standards.   

DAC has a reputation to being responsive to the client’s needs, 
providing on-time project completion within budgets. DAC has a 
proven track record for comprehensive experience in conducting ADA 
Self Evaluations and Transition Plans, implementation and related 
services.  

Other public entities for which DAC has provided similar services include Fair Oaks Recreation and Park 
District, Padre Dam Water District, Hayward Parks and Recreation, 15 California Fairs, 160 California public 
school districts, and several large Joint Power Authorities and insurance carriers for groups of public entities.  

DAC is currently assisting the California Joint Powers Insurance Authority (CJPIA) members, of which the City 
of Sierra Madre belongs, to assist members with ADA compliance at a discounted rate. DAC has been 
assisting several Joint Power Authorities in Sacramento and El Dorado County since 2000 and currently 
provides updates, consultation, plan reviews and expert witness services. DAC has worked with public 
entities of all sizes, from one site to 506 sites.  Members of the DAC team have also served as expert 
witnesses to assist public entities to defend their current practices and ADA plan.  DAC has only served on the 
side to assist public entities to defend their practices and plan and has never assisted with litigation against a 
public entity. Our mission statement and philosophy embrace the enhancement and assistance to our clients 
to build an ADA accessibility plan while documenting previous and current compliance methods. 

Over the 17 years of serving our clients, DAC has demonstrated financial stability, staff stability and has a no 
claims insurance record.  

DAC provides a full continuum of professional services that include, but are not limited to:  

 Facility inspections 

 Self-evaluations for ADA and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act 

 Policy review and development 

 Transition plans 

 Public rights-of-way surveys 

 Consultation 

 Accessibility compliance intake and management software – DACTrak 



Disability Access Consultants Proposal to the City of Sierra Madre for ADA Consulting Services 3 
 

 DACTrak training to conduct your own inspections 

 Expert witness services 

 Plan reviews 

 ADA Plan implementation assistance and consultation 

 Outdoor developed and recreational areas (pools, parks, trails, camping areas) 

 NPSI playground safety inspections 

 ADA Playground inspections 

DAC utilizes the appropriate standard(s) for the inspection that may include, but is not limited to:  

 ADA 2010 Standards 

 California Building Code 

 ADA-ABA 

 UFAS 

 ANSI 

 Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act 

 Outdoor developed and recreational standards 

 National Playground Safety Institute (NPSI) standards 

 PROWAG – Federal Public Rights-of-way Guidelines 

 Federal Highway Administration’s Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD) 

Our firm stands out in the public entity arena due to proven performance in a wide range of services, from 
programmatic and policy reviews, facility inspections, transition plans, consultation, plan reviews and expert 
witness services.  We excel at providing a comprehensive assessment of our clients’ current status by 
preparing a study of all areas related to accessibility in different departments to document ongoing 
compliance. 

Innovative Tools, Strategies and Best Practices  
Based on experience and knowledge of the accessibility field and best practices, DAC continues to develop 
innovative methodologies, easy to use ADA management tools, and proven, successful strategies for 
evaluating programs, services, activities, events, facilities, parks and public rights-of-way. DACTrak was 
developed by DAC for the purpose of easy and useful importing and management of the accessibility data 
collected in the field. DACTrak is interactive web-based software and is not an enhanced Excel spread sheet. 
The ability to collect, compile, analyze and use report data in a practical format was one of the driving forces 
to develop the DACTrak intake and management software.  

Our DAC accessibility management software, DACTrak, provides our clients with a powerful management tool 
to document compliance, project costs, print custom reports and record progress.  DACTrak is not an Excel 
spreadsheet, but actual software that has been developed by our company to assist with the implementation 
and documentation of the City’s ADA plan and provides photographs of as-is site conditions, which has 
proved to be valuable documentation.  Findings and recommendations, in addition to other data are 
preloaded into the DACTrak software.  As DAC owns and licenses the DACTrak software, we can make custom 
modifications for our clients.  

The DAC team members proposed for the City of Sierra Madre project have worked together on similar 
projects.  A few projects are listed below.  References and a description for the scope of work are provided 
for several of the following recent California projects: 

 City of San Clemente  

 City of Palos Verdes Estates 

 City of Carlsbad 

 City of Palm Springs 

 City of Fountain Valley 

 City of Los Alamitos 



Disability Access Consultants Proposal to the City of Sierra Madre for ADA Consulting Services 4 
 

 City of Pismo Beach  

 County of Kern 

 City of Modesto 

 City of La Quinta 

 City of Newport Beach 

 City of Claremont 

 City of Huntington Beach 

 City of Modesto 

 City of Manteca 

 City of Grass Valley 

 City of Banning 

 County of Butte 

 Solano County 

 City of Moreno Valley 

 City of Palm Springs 

 City of Cypress 

 City of Lincoln City 

 Calaveras County  

 Desert Recreation District 

 Fair Oaks Recreation and Park District 
• City of Glendale 
• City of Oroville 
• City of Clovis 
• County of Santa Clara 
• County of Shasta 
• Town of Paradise 
• City of Laguna Woods 

DACTrak Accessibility Management Software 
The accessibility management software is included at no cost to the City for the first year as the cost is paid 
by the CJPIA.  If the City decides to continue with the use of the web-based management software after the 
initial year, the cost is $2,000 and includes unlimited seat licenses. If the City decides not to continue the use 
of DACTrak, the City’s data will be exported into a format such as excel.  The use of the DACTrak software 
includes the storage and maintenance of the City data. If the City decides not to continue to use the web-
based DACTrak Accessibility Management System to maintain, update and document compliance of the ADA 
plan, the data can be transferred to an Excel spreadsheet or an alternate format.  DAC has found that usable 
and easy to manage software (instead of Excel spreadsheets) is imperative to maintaining and updating the 
ADA plan.   

Categories can be customized and findings organized as demonstrated in the screen shots of the DACTrak 
software included in the supplemental materials Appendix.  



Disability Access Consultants Proposal to the City of Sierra Madre for ADA Consulting Services 5 
 

 

PROJECT TEAM STAFFING AND RESUMES 

Disability Access Consultants (DAC) has a dedicated team of fourteen professionals with backgrounds in 
administrative leadership roles with public entities, construction and code enforcement. DAC is an equal 
opportunity employer and our team composition includes minority and veteran representation. The team has 
worked together on numerous ADA compliance projects with City governments and public entities.  DAC 
works with several large JPA’s and insurance pools to assist public entities with ADA compliance.   

 

The DAC team has a proven record to provide on-site services in a collaborative and efficient manner.  DAC 
has experienced team members who have worked with public entities for successful and on time completion 
of numerous projects. Necessary staff members have ICC, NPSI, and CASp certification. A CASp certified Team 
Leader will be involved with the project and field evaluations. The project team is organized to provide a 
representation of skills needed to accomplish the project objectives.  In addition, teams that have worked 
together previously will be assigned to the City of Sierra Madre project.  Following are descriptions of key 
team members’ qualifications and their assigned roles.   

Barbara Thorpe, M.Ed., LOT 

City Contacts  

City of Sierra 
Madre 

Barbara Thorpe 

Project Manager 

Srikant Talasila 

Director of IT 

Michael Boga 
CASp-152, ICC 

Facility Team Leader / 
Quality Control 

Candice Pursch 
Field Inspection Supervisor 

Field Inspectors (4-6) 

Jennie Grover 

Director of 
Operations 



Disability Access Consultants Proposal to the City of Sierra Madre for ADA Consulting Services 6 
 

DAC Project Manager 
As DAC Project Manager, Barbara will coordinate activities and schedules and report to the Director of 
Human Resources or designee. Barbara will serve in the leadership role regarding the ADA Self-Evaluation of 
programs, services, activities and events along with the review of policies and procedures. Barbara brings 
twenty years of experience in public administration and providing services to individuals with disabilities to 
Disability Access Consultants.  As an administrator in a public entity, Barbara provides unparalleled 
understanding of the application of the Americans with Disabilities Act and related legislation.  In addition to 
assisting public entities with compliance with the ADA, Barbara has conducted compliance reviews for the 
Department of the Interior to audit for compliance with the ADA, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act and 
related civil rights laws and regulations.  Barbara has served as an expert witness for the Department of 
Justice, Office of the Attorney General.  Additionally, Barbara is a licensed occupational therapist.  Barbara 
served on the Division of State Architect Advisory Board and served as the vice-chair for the DSA Access 
Compliance Committee. Barbara has worked on over 200 public entity projects that are similar to the City. 

Michael Boga, B.A. Education, California Certified Access Specialist, ICC Accessibility, Usability and Plans 
Examiner 
Facility Team Leader 
As manager of the production and the inspection team, Michael brings a unique blend of experience in the 
building industry along with his understanding of individuals with disabilities to the accessibility team.  
Michael is a certified accessibility specialist through the International Conference of Building Officials (ICC), 
certified in Accessibility, Usability and Plans examination and is California certified CASp inspector #152.  
Michael has completed the updated DSA courses regarding the 2010 California Building Code.  Michael has 
provided numerous staff development sessions to public entities regarding accessibility requirements.  If 
requested, Michael would provide training, assist with plan reviews and review new work completed for 
compliance, as requested. Mike has worked on over 260 projects that are similar to the City of Sierra Madre. 

Jason Katz, B.S. Urban Planning, B.A. Sustainability and Urban Dynamics 
DAC Accessibility Specialist 
Jason brings to DAC a background in civil design with degrees in Urban Planning and Sustainability/Urban 
Dynamics.  Jason is also certified in Geographic Information Science and Auto CAD.  Prior to becoming an 
Accessibility Specialist with DAC, Jason has worked on projects to compare and estimate future urban area 
population density differences using ESRI ArcMap 10, and also worked with the City of Mesa, Arizona to help 
establish green building codes for City owned buildings.   

Srikant Talasila 
Director, Information Technology 
Srikant brings many years of experience with information technology and management information services 
from a large corporation.  He has the ability to categorize and organize large volumes of information 
regarding public and school facilities into a manageable database.  He provides training and consultation to 
our clients in the use of DACTrak.  Srikant would work directly with City of Sierra Madre staff to train and 
assist with the data entry and management of data.  

Jennie Grover 
Director of Operations  
Jennie draws on her experience in technical writing to provide leadership and management of the production 
and technical writing team, organizing the completion of technical reports, as well as managing production 
schedules, staff and timelines.  

 
CLIENT REFERENCE LIST  
The following are a few of the most recently completed references for scopes of work similar to the City of 
Sierra Madre that include City and County Governments and Park Districts.  Numerous additional references 
are available.   



Disability Access Consultants Proposal to the City of Sierra Madre for ADA Consulting Services 7 
 

City of Fountain Valley 
Temo Galvez 
Deputy City Engineer 
10200 Slater Avenue 
Fountain Valley, CA 92708 
Phone: (714) 593-4517 
Temo.galvez@fountainvalley.org 
 

 ADA Self-evaluation and transition plans of buildings, parks, 
intersections, sidewalks and public rights-of-way. The City was 
provided DACTrak Accessibility Management Software to 
manage the implementation of the plan, document resources 
needed and document progress.  

 The ADA Self-Evaluation of programs, services and activities to 
determine if any were discriminatory for individuals with 
disabilities was completed by DAC. 

Contract End Date:  May 2011-Ist Contract; additional 2014 work 
Contract Amount:  $125,000 

City of Palos Verdes Estates 
Sheri Repp Loadsman 
Planning and Building Director 
340 Palos Verdes Drive West 
Palos Verdes Estates, CA  90274 
Phone:  (310) 378-0383 
srepp@pvestates.org  

 ADA Self-evaluation and transition plans of buildings, parks, 
golf course, pools, parking lots, concessions, and public rights-
of-way.  

 The City was provided DACTrak Accessibility Management 
Software to manage the implementation of the plan, 
document resources needed and document progress.  

 DAC is assisting with the development of an ADA Self-
evaluation  

 DAC is providing assistance to the City for analysis of City vs. 
private entity upgrade obligations of leased sites. 

Contract End Date:  2014, consultation in 2015 
 Contract Amount:  $52,300 

City of Claremont 
Jeff Baughman 
Building Official 
207 N Harvard Avenue 
Claremont, CA  91711 
Phone:  (909) 399-5477 
srepp@pvestates.org 

 DAC provided ADA Self-evaluation and transition plans of 
buildings, parks, intersections, roadways, sidewalks and public 
rights-of-way.  

 The City was provided DACTrak Accessibility Management 
Software to manage the implementation of the plan, 
document resources needed and document progress.  

 DAC also conducted the ADA Self-Evaluation of programs, 
services and activities to determine if any were discriminatory 
for individuals with disabilities and provided the City with an 
Executive Summary detailing the results and 
recommendations. 

Contract End Date:  2014 
 Contract Amount:  $112,500 

County of Butte 
Grant Hunsicker 
Director of General Services 
2081 2nd Street 
Oroville, CA  95965-3413 
Phone: (530) 538-2511 
Ghunsicker@buttecounty.net  
 

 DAC is currently working with the County to inspect County 
facilities for compliance with the Americans with Disabilities 
Act and California Building Code. 

 DAC is also performing a review of County policies, grievance 
procedures and public notices to evaluate their compliance 
with the ADA and suggest alternatives if necessary. 

 DAC is assisting the County in developing their updated 
transition plan. 

 DAC has provided training to County staff on ADA compliance, 
methods for reasonable accommodations, and effective 
communications with individuals with disabilities. 

Contract End Date:  2015 
 Contract Amount:  $91,000 

mailto:Temo.galvez@fountainvalley.org
mailto:srepp@pvestates.org
mailto:srepp@pvestates.org
mailto:Ghunsicker@buttecounty.net


Disability Access Consultants Proposal to the City of Sierra Madre for ADA Consulting Services 8 
 

County of Solano 
Rosa Lane, PhD, AIA, LEED AP 
Associate County Architect 
Division of Architectural Services 
675 Texas Street, Suite 2500 
Fairfield, CA  94533 
Phone:  (707) 784-7908 
rmlane@solanocounty.com 

 DAC is currently performing ADA Accessibility surveys of 
County facilities using the DACTrak Accessibility Management 
software. 

 DAC is also assisting the County to perform a Self-Evaluation 
of services, policies, programs and practices. 

 County staff is using DACTrak to update and implement their 
Transition Plan. 

Contract End Date:  2015 
Contract Amount:  $260,000 

City of Newport Beach 
Fong Tse 
Principal Civil Engineer 
3300 Newport Boulevard 
Newport Beach, CA  92663 
Phone: (949) 644-3321 
FTSE@newportbeachca.gov 

 ADA Self-evaluation and transition plans of buildings, parks, 
intersections, roadways, sidewalks and public rights-of-way. 
The City was provided DACTrak Accessibility Management 
Software to manage the implementation of the plan, 
document resources needed and document progress. 

Contract End Date:  April 2013 
Contract Amount:  $150,000 

County of Shasta 
Thomas Forbish 
Facilities & Fleet Divisions Manager 
Facilities & Fleet Services Division 
1958 Placer Street 
Redding, CA  96001 
Phone:  (530) 225-5659 
tforbish@co.shasta.ca.us   

 DAC is training County staff to use DACTrak to perform self-
inspections of County facilities using the DACTrak Intake 
inspection software. 

 The County is also using the DACTrak online management 
software to update the County’s transition and barrier 
removal plan. 

Contract End Date:  Current project (City staff uses DAC tablet to 
complete their own inspections) 
Contract Amount:  $25,000 

City of La Quinta 
Terry Deeringer 
Human Resources/General Services 
Manager 
78495 Calle Tampico 
La Quinta, CA  92253 
Phone: (760) 777-7041 
Tdeeringer@la-quinta.org  
 

 ADA Self-evaluation and transition plans of buildings, parks, 
intersections, roadways, sidewalks and public rights-of-way. 
The City was provided DACTrak Accessibility Management 
Software to manage the implementation of the plan, 
document resources needed and document progress.  

 The ADA Self-Evaluation of programs, services and activities to 
determine if any were discriminatory for individuals with 
disabilities was completed by DAC. 

Contract End Date:  2012 & ongoing consultation 
Contract Amount:  $100,000 

City of San Clemente 
Johanne Thordahl 
Risk Mgmt. Analyst 
100 Avenida Presidio 
San Clemente, CA 82672 
Phone: (949) 361-8203 
ThordahlJ@san-clemente.org 
 
Sam Penrod 
Human Resources Manager 
100 Avenida Presidio 
San Clemente, CA 92672 
Phone: (949) 361-8313 
PenrodS@san-clemente.org 

 ADA Self-evaluation and transition plans of buildings, parks, 
piers, beach areas, golf course, pools, beach concessions, 
lifeguard areas, trails and public rights-of-way.  

 The City was provided DACTrak Accessibility Management 
Software to manage the implementation of the plan, 
document resources needed and document progress.  

 The ADA Self-Evaluation of programs, services and activities to 
determine if any were discriminatory for individuals with 
disabilities was completed by DAC.  

 DAC also assisted with the resolution of two complaints. 

Contract End Date:  2012, ongoing consultation 
Contract Amount:  $70,000 

mailto:rmlane@solanocounty.com
mailto:krowen@newportbeachca.gov
mailto:tforbish@co.shasta.ca.us
mailto:Tdeeringer@la-quinta.org
mailto:ThordahlJ@san-clemente.org
mailto:PenrodS@san-clemente.org


Disability Access Consultants Proposal to the City of Sierra Madre for ADA Consulting Services 9 
 

 
Disability Access Consultants has never been removed from a project or disqualified from proposing on a 
project. 

SUBCONSULTANTS 

DAC does not use subcontractors or subconsultants, as DAC prefers team members that have direct 
accountability and training by DAC to provide a seamless project delivery and interaction with City staff. 

SCOPE OF WORK 

Disability Access Consultants (DAC) understands that the City of Sierra Madre (City) is seeking a qualified firm 
to inspect, evaluate and prepare reports identifying potential barriers in the City-owned buildings, parks, 
parking lots and public rights-of-way. 

The inspections will identify barriers or potential barriers in accordance with applicable Federal and State 
accessibility standards and regulations. In addition, it is understood that DAC will assist the City in developing 
a schedule for barrier removal over time in a cost effective and realistic manner, using programmatic 
solutions where available. 

In order to successfully complete the project activities in a timely manner, DAC will work closely and 
collaboratively with the City of Sierra Madre without imposing unnecessary interruptions or burdens to City 
staff. During the past 17 years, Barbara Thorpe and her team have developed ongoing working relationships 
with City and County governments and have worked diligently to have clear lines of communication.  

DAC has the extensive knowledge and experience with all Federal and State regulations during the past 17 
years in business, that includes, but is not limited to the ADA up to and including the current 2010 American’s 
Disability Act Standards (ADAS), 28 Code of Federal Regulation (CFR) 35, Title 24 California Building Standards 
Code, Title II of the ADA, PROWAG, MUTCD, Section 504 and related Federal and State Standards and 
Regulations. 

Value Added Items to Enhance the Project at No Additional Cost or that Provide a Cost Savings 

In addition to the above understandings and confirmations, DAC has found through its experience of working 
with City and County Governments and Joint Power Authorities, such as the California Joint Powers Insurance 
Authority, of which the City of Sierra Madre is a member, that certain other items enhance the level of 
success and implementation of ADA Transition Plans and Self-Evaluations by public entities. 

The California JPIA (CJPIA) offers a discounted price to its members that has been negotiated with DAC.  The 
CJPIA is also assisting members, such as the City, with costs for selected services for ADA compliance. 

The use of DACTrak by City staff to conduct surveys at facilities, process reports and manage the information 
to implement and document the plan may assist the City to more efficiently and effectively achieve the City’s 
project objectives and will provide longevity to the plan.  

As an additional value at no cost, DAC provides at least one photograph of each noncompliant accessible 
item or element, a record number for reference, estimated costs and other features to assist with the 
implementation of the Transition Plan.  To provide for easy management of the transition plan and 
documentation of compliance efforts, DAC has developed web-based software called DACTrak.  DACTrak is a 
powerful tool to manage and update the accessibility plan, project costs and document progress.  Custom 
reports can be easily prepared, printed and saved in a variety of formats. 

Disability Access Consultants (DAC) includes the following additions at no additional cost:  

 Noncompliant findings and recommendations are included in the DACTrak software 

 One or more photographs of each noncompliant finding are included   

 Additional photographs can be viewed of the noncompliant item by one click 

 DACTrak provides a method to schedule and track the barrier removal 



Disability Access Consultants Proposal to the City of Sierra Madre for ADA Consulting Services 10 
 

 Documentation of progress and compliance using the progress reporting feature of DACTrak 

 Priorities can be established and further refined using DACTrak 

DACTrak provides for an organized input method that captures all of the information gathered from the site 
inspections with photographs for each noncompliant finding.  In essence, all of the field information is 
captured in a web-based software package and provides for “green” data collection and avoids paper and 
pencil checklists and unorganized photographs. DACTrak can also be used on a tablet pc to add new facilities 
and update compliance assessments and transition plans.  

DAC has also found that having usable “software” and not just a database is very important to be able to 
easily manage and update the transition plan. Our extensive experience with clients needing to have an easy 
to manage and update plan was the catalyst for DAC to develop our DACTrak software for use by our clients.  
Thus, other critical issues include:  

 Software to update and manage your Transition Plan 

 The ability to document progress and barrier removal 

 The ability to print custom reports 

 The ability to update the plan “automatically” when codes change without re-inspecting sites 

 The ability to project costs 

 The ability to add or delete facilities 

DAC’s collection of actual measurements of as-is 
conditions and GIS information for public rights-
of-way is another value added item.  The 
collection of an as-is condition is a valuable asset 
to allow the user to make an informed decision 
based on an actual measurement.  For example, 
if a “yes” or “no” approach is utilized to indicate 
if an item is compliant, the user may not know 
what the actual level of noncompliance is and 
would not be able to set a priority or severity 
rating.  If codes change, the information 
collected can be reprocess without the need to 
re-inspect, thus providing longevity of the plan 
and internal capacity of the City in a cost 
effective manner.  

 

SCOPE OF WORK OVERALL PHASES 

DAC proposes to execute the project in two phases.  Detailed activities and deliverables are provided in the 
following scope of work description.  

Phase I: Study and Evaluation - Self-Evaluation/Facility Survey/Barrier Assessment 

a) DAC will conduct an initial project kick-off meeting, if requested, with selected City of Sierra Madre staff 
to establish roles and lines of communication, refine project goals, review the overall project schedule, 
schedule surveys of City of Sierra Madre facilities and identify key City of Sierra Madre personnel related 
to the project scope. Initial self-evaluation activities will be completed during this step. 

b) The initial orientation meeting should include an assessment of previous compliance activities and areas 
of current or potential litigation.  The review of compliance activities and high priority areas will assist 
with the development of an overall project plan. The review and documentation of prior initiatives will 
also build a more defensible plan if the City is challenged by litigation. 

c) DAC will conduct field surveys of the buildings and facilities listed in the property schedule, as well as the 
City maintained public rights-of-way to sidewalks, curb ramps and signalized intersections.  



Disability Access Consultants Proposal to the City of Sierra Madre for ADA Consulting Services 11 
 

d) Surveys will identify all physical barriers (interior and exterior) including the path of travel in and around 
the facility and from the public right-of-way at each site in accordance with Title 24 of the California 
Building Code and the ADA Standards (previously referred to as ADAAG). 

e) DAC currently provides geographical information (latitude and longitude) for each identified exterior 
barrier in the public right-of-way that can be incorporated into the City’s Geographical Information 
System (GIS).  DAC incorporated the map-linked GIS feature based on the needs of many of our City and 
County clients.  DAC uses a comprehensive approach to inspecting public rights-of-way (PROW).  In order 
to conduct an assessment of all the requirements in the PROW, DAC conducts manual measurements of 
the field conditions and enters the information into our DACTrak pc tablet in the field.  DAC has found 
that the use of automated equipment for running slopes on sidewalks, such as ultra-light profilers, do 
not provide an actual measurement, but only provide a chart showing ranges.  In some cases, if a change 
in level is greater than ½ inch, no actual quantifiable information is reported of how much greater or of 
the severity.  In order to get the actual measurements for the sidewalks and intersections, the use of a 
“profiler” does not provide the measurements needed for items such as automated pedestrian signals 
and street furniture.  

f) As required by the ADA, the 2010 ADA Standards will be compared with state codes (Title 24 of the 
California Building Code) and the standard that provides the greater level of accessibility utilized. As DAC 
collects as-is field conditions and records all information, data can be reprocessed if codes change 
without conducting a re-inspection, thus resulting in a significant savings when codes change and the 
plan needs to be updated.  

g) Provisions and standards for historic buildings will be applied as appropriate. 
h) Assessments and reports will include a high degree of detail with photographs, code references, and cost 

estimates.  The DACTrak software and reports will include additional specifics, such as as-built 
dimensions, progress reports, additional prioritizations, preset reporting features and other custom 
reports. Reports will be delivered in the format requested, and reports will also be available using 
DACTrak. The inclusion of photographs showing the as-is condition has proven to be valuable assistance 
to clients in the formulation of the decisions regarding barrier removal priorities. The DACTrak software 
provides an easy to use accessibility management platform that exceeds the ability to manage the plan 
by hard copies and binders.  The assessment report of each facility will include cost estimates to correct 
deficiencies in accordance with the ADA, Title 24 of the California Building Code.  

i) Barriers are identified by building, floor, or location and given a unique identifier record number (UIN) to 
assist with navigation in the accessibility software and location of the finding and recommendation by 
area and site. Estimated applicable costs will be given by item and element in accordance with industry 
standards. Costs can be easily adjusted to adhere to any cost estimates the City may utilize.   

j) Physical access problems that require structural solutions will be documented in the Compliance 
Assessment/Transition Plan.  The proposed method for removal will be provided. The transition plan will 
identify physical barriers that may limit accessibility of City programs, services or activities for individuals 
with disabilities.  The schedule for removal of barriers and appropriate timelines will be developed in 
consultation with the City.  

k) The field survey information will be presented to the ADA Compliance Team as requested using the 
DACTrak web-based accessibility management system.  Many different types of reports will be available 
for the City.  Feedback will be incorporated as appropriate.  

l) The survey data will be compiled into a Transition Plan which will identify actual as-is conditions and 
prioritize current barriers, provide a schedule for barrier removal, as well as establish procedures for 
addressing future accessibility issues.  The Transition Plan data is able to be exported to Excel or PDF 
formats.  The Transition Plan data will include photographs, findings, recommendations, code references, 
estimated costs, priority settings (in addition to prioritized report) in accessibility software for 
accessibility management. Photographs and GIS coordinates are valuable for the development of the 
transition plan.  

m) DAC will assist the City to solicit input from members of the community and persons with disabilities.  
Methods will be utilized to solicit public input may include notices, information on the website and 



Disability Access Consultants Proposal to the City of Sierra Madre for ADA Consulting Services 12 
 

surveys. 
n) The Transition Plan data will be provided using DACTrak which has management, monitoring, and web-

based tracking tools that allow staff to manage current and future accessibility issues, update the 
deficiency status, and generate reports to show progress in meeting the Transition Plan requirements. 

Phase II: Implementation Phase - Transition Plan Development 

a) DAC will develop, in collaboration with the City a comprehensive ADA Self-Evaluation and Transition plan 
for facilities, buildings, parks and public rights-of-way. 

b) DAC will develop a first draft of the ADA Transition Plan with recommended priority levels. 
c) DAC will meet with the City to review the draft document and incorporate any comments, changes or 

feedback.  
d) DAC will assist the City to conduct public outreach activities that may include website announcements, 

postings, surveys, announcements, individual meetings and other activities as requested.  
e) DAC will prepare and produce a second draft if necessary with a detailed description of the barrier and 

the proposed method for barrier removal. 
f) DAC will train the City in the use of the 

DACTrak web-based accessibility 
management system to prepare reports as 
well as update and manage the ADA Plan.  

g) DAC will provide an executive summary of 
the project.  

h) If requested, DAC can present the draft ADA 
Transition Plan at a regularly scheduled 
council meeting for discussion and for 
informational purposes.  DAC does not 
recommend that the plan be adopted by 
the City, as adoption is not required and 
may cause additional discussion regarding 
projected dates in the plan that are meant 
to be “projected and estimated dates” and 
not final dates of barrier removal.  

i) DAC will provide the City with DACTrak, a web-based monitoring, tracking, and management system at 
project completion.  DACTrak allows users to review and update progress in barrier removal, and to 
generate many different styles of reports to document progress.  DACTrak contains one or more 
integrated photographs that are attached to the finding, eliminating the need to reference another area 
or report supplement. DACTrak is an actual accessibility management software, not just electronic 
database of items contained in the Facility Survey Report. DAC has found that an electronic database or 
Excel format does not provide the City with a tool containing integrated photographs needed to 
implement the plan, set priorities, make notes and print custom reports. If the City does not want to use 
the software, the data can be placed in an Excel spreadsheet.  

 DAC will license DACTrak to the City to manage all of the field data collected, print custom reports, 
document progress, estimate costs and perform other management functions;  

 Data collected will be the property of the City should the City decide for any reason not to continue 
to use the DACTrak accessibility intake and management software system;  

 The California JPIA, of which the City is a member, has an agreement with DAC to pay for the use of 
DACTrak; 

 DACTrak will include and provide correlation with field data collected, reports, transition plans, 
drawings, code references, estimated costs and photographs for each noncompliant accessibility 
item or element;  

 Reference maps for GIS information will be provided in addition to a linked mapping system for 
each item;  



Disability Access Consultants Proposal to the City of Sierra Madre for ADA Consulting Services 13 
 

 DACTrak provides a description, location and record number for each barrier that allows the user to 
access the information and location 

j) DAC will provide City staff with training regarding ADA Compliance from both a programmatic and 
administrative point of view and also for facility management and maintenance.   

 

 

 

 

COST PROPOSAL  

The total cost proposal includes all expenses and there are no additional reimbursable charges from the City 
Sierra Madre 

1. Survey of City facilities at the following costs:     $28,825  

 Sierra Vista Park 

 Community Center 

 Aquatic Center 

 Youth Activity Center 

 Memorial Park 

 Hart Park House 

 Mt. Wilson Trail Park 

 Lizzies Trail Inn 

 Richardson House 

 Bailey Canyon Wilderness 

 City Hall 

 Public Safety Facility 

 Library 

 Maintenance Yard 

 Milton and Harriet Goldberg Park 

 Kersting Court 

 Montecito Parking Lot 

 Mariposa Parking Lot 

 Auburn Parking Lot 

 South Baldwin Parking Lot 

Survey of City Public Rights-of-way at the following costs:    $18,000 

 45 Miles of Sidewalks (Sidewalks and Curb Ramps) 

PRICING TOTAL:        $46,825 

Total Cost and Cost Savings 

2. Total Cost for Sierra Madre inspection/surveys without Assistance Level 2: $46,825 

 

CJPIA is offering $16,500 of funding assistance for Assistance Level 2 (AL-2), should City make 

commitment to entire proposal. This would make the net cost of the surveys (AL-2), $30,325. Please 



Disability Access Consultants Proposal to the City of Sierra Madre for ADA Consulting Services 14 
 

visit with your CJPIA Risk Manager, Maria Galvan for further questions. 

 

We have estimated that the city has 45 miles of City roadway miles, including sidewalks and curb 

ramps to be surveyed at a not to exceed cost of $18,000 using the rate of $400 per linear mile of 

sidewalk. DAC will calculate the number of miles of sidewalk surveyed to calculate a total fee based 

upon the miles surveyed only. For example, if the amount of sidewalk miles is less than the amount 

allocated, the City will only be invoiced for the linear miles of sidewalk survey. The survey 

information will be placed into DACTrak. 

3. Review of policies, procedures and programs and assistance with public input at a cost of $5,000 
which is paid by the CJPIA for a net cost of zero.  
 

4. The CJPIA is paying the $2,000 for the first year of licensing of DACTrak.  The cost includes unlimited 
seat licenses. The member is responsible for additional years of licensure at $2,000 per license.  

The preceding costs reflect a discounted price for members of the California Joint Powers Insurance 
Authority.  Costs were calculated using the CJPIA property schedule. 

In addition, the CJPIA has a Master Agreement with DAC for an hourly rate of $98.00 per hour, plus expenses.  
Time and expenses can be calculated and the City provided with either an hourly rate, plus expenses or a 
total fixed price, whichever is less.   

Possible Cost Saving Options 

Cost savings options may be available and may include portions of the study being conducted by City staff.  
For example, the Self-evaluation, policy review and public input may be conducted by the City ADA 
Coordinator with guidance and assistance from DAC to result in a cost savings.  
 
In addition, although selected non-public areas were deleted from the CJPIA Property Schedule (i.e. pump 
houses, lift stations), there may be other sites that may be eliminated, thus resulting in a cost savings.  
 
DAC has found that a combination of training in the classroom and in the field for practical, hands on 
application works best. DAC has trained several public entity clients to conduct their own inspections using 
the DACTrak tablet.  The DACTrak tablet guides the user through the inspection and asks for specific 
measurements.  If a measurement is not taken and added to the electronic intake sheet, the software 
prompts the user to add the required information and touch the camera icon to take one or more pictures of 
each item.  Thus, the “smart technology” of the software improves the consistency and quality of the 
inspection and lends itself to users other than DAC inspectors for a cost savings.  
 
Reports are generated after completion of the field intake, offering a quick turnaround and report 
generation.  The quick turnaround time and easy access of password protected data is valuable for public 
entities that need to fast track information and reports. The methodology also provides a cost effective 
process.   DACTrak also provides the opportunity for City of Sierra Madre staff to be trained to use the 
DACTrak intake tablet to capture field data, which can then be viewed by an off-site City of Sierra Madre staff 
member accessing DACTrak.com.  Photographs are automatically captured using the intake software and are 
easily viewed online.  Several photos may be added for supporting documentation of each noncompliant 
finding.  Additional photographs can be added for other areas that may or may not be related to accessibility. 
Reports can be accessed in multiple formats, depending upon the needs of the City of Sierra Madre. Costs 
can easily be adjusted and maintained.  DACTrak has seven preset priority findings.  DAC will apply the state 
and federal recommended priority levels, but will also further customize the priority levels based upon the 
magnitude of impact and use by individuals with disabilities in public areas. 



Disability Access Consultants Proposal to the City of Sierra Madre for ADA Consulting Services 15 
 

Due to the severe shortfall of funding for City of Sierra Madre and other City governments, DAC proposes 
alternatives to DAC completing the entire ADA transition plan.  DAC has worked with numerous City and 
County governments and has provided individualized programs to meet their needs, sometimes in phases, to 
enhance compliance with the ADA within the constraints of their budgets.  Several strategies that the City of 
Sierra Madre might utilize include, but are not limited to:  

 DAC conducting accessibility surveys in phases, prioritizing the facility inspections for sites that have 
high public use or high use by individuals with disabilities 

 Using our DAC pc tablet, City of Sierra Madre employees can conduct their own inspections 

 DAC conducts some of the inspections while City of Sierra Madre employees follow and receive in 
field training 

 DAC completes all project components in additional phases over multiple budget years   

 Or a combination of the above alternatives 

The cost saving alternative of City staff using the DACTrak tablet to complete the public right-of-way 
inspections may be a viable alternative that will produce a cost savings.  

SCHEDULE: SCOPE OF SERVICES SUMMARY BY ESTIMATED TIMELINES 

Based upon experience, a project milestone chart is provided in weeks. It is estimated that the project will be 
completed in five months, or sooner. The chart below is a summary of major milestones and is not 
necessarily representative of all of the individual project activities.  

Scope of Service –Activity or Task Weeks 

1-4 

Weeks 

5-8 

Weeks 

9-12 

Weeks 

13-16 

Weeks 

17-20 

DAC Team Meetings with City; survey methodologies, deliverables 
and schedule confirmation    

  

Project planning, scheduling, procedures review 
   

  

Field inspection data compiled (compiled on a daily basis and 
available for review throughout the inspection process)    

  

First Draft of ADA Transition Plan 
   

  

Solicit and record feedback from the City, and members of the 
community    

  

Presentation to ADA Compliance Team of second draft ADA 
Transition Plan    

  

Final Draft 
   

  

Deliverables completed and presentation to the City  
   

  

 

 

Consultant Responsibilities 

DAC will arrange all project management activities for an efficient process to develop the ADA Transition 
plan and provide the City with an anticipated project schedule prior to commencement of work. 

DAC will perform all work in conformance with current City policies and procedures and carry out the 
instructions received from the City, in cooperation with other City approved and involved agencies. 



Disability Access Consultants Proposal to the City of Sierra Madre for ADA Consulting Services 16 
 

Additional Information 

Conflict of Interest Statement 

DAC does not have any financial, business or other relationship with the City that may have an impact upon 
the outcome of this contract and does not have any current clients that may have a financial interest in the 
outcome of this contract. Disability Access Consultants has no conflict of interest with the City of Sierra 
Madre, any associates, representative, consultants, sub consultants, or others. 

DAC does not have any conditions that would affect our ability to perform the services described in this 
proposal.  DAC does not have any previous, pending or current litigation.  Our firm has not been debarred, 
suspended or declared ineligible to contract with any federal state or local public agency. The firm, owners or 
president is not in the Federal Excluded parties List System (EPLS) for Ineligible Professionals and Debarred 
Contractors.  

Insurance Coverage and Stability 

Disability Access Consultants carries all the necessary insurance coverage, such as general liability, 
automobile liability, worker’s compensation and employer’s liability, and professional errors and omissions 
malpractice liability insurance.  DAC has a no claims record on all policies for our entire 17 years in business 
and does not have any pending, previous or current litigation. 

DAC has the financial, operational and staff stability to complete a quality and comprehensive project on 
time.  DAC has no adverse conditions.  

Minority Utilization and Affirmative Action 

DAC is an equal opportunity employer and has recruited minorities and veterans.  DAC’s quality control team 
leader is a Vietnam veteran with a disability.  

Background Checks and Fingerprinting 

All employees of Disability Access Consultants have been fingerprinted and have background checks. DAC has 
FBI and DOJ fingerprint clearances on file for DAC staff.  We have conducted studies for school districts, state 
and local governments, the Federal Government, Judicial Chambers and Correctional Institutions that require 
background checks. DAC has found that background checks are important especially in situations where 
inspection staff may be working near children, and are required in certain situations. 

Supplemental Materials 

 

Sample DACTrak Screen Shots and Information 

These samples are generated from the DACTrak Accessibility Management web-based software program. The 
following screen shots are recent examples of the DACTrak Management software prepared for several 
public entity clients.  



Disability Access Consultants Proposal to the City of Sierra Madre for ADA Consulting Services 17 
 

 

 
 

Upon logging in to 

the secure DACTrak 

website, you are able 

to choose the facility 

you would like to 

view and manage. 

These two screen 

shots are examples of 

facility lists for two 

recent public entity 

transition plan 

projects. 



Disability Access Consultants Proposal to the City of Sierra Madre for ADA Consulting Services 18 
 

 
 

 
 
 

After choosing a 

facility, you are 

able to use Reports 

drop down menu 

to choose which 

report style to 

view.  You may 

also choose to 

view multiple 

facilities in one 

report. 

This screenshot is 

an example of the 

home page for a 

Basic Photo 

Report.  The sort 

and filter panel 

allows users to 

quickly run reports 

that generate 

findings for 

specified locations 

or categories, or by 

progress, priority 

or resolution 

status. 



Disability Access Consultants Proposal to the City of Sierra Madre for ADA Consulting Services 19 
 

 
 

 

These two screenshots 

are examples of a 

finding page in a Basic 

Photo Report.  This 

type of report shows 

the user the finding, 

with accompanying 

recommendation to 

correct the non-

compliant item, the 

associated photo, code 

reference(s), estimated 

cost to remove the 

barrier, and any 

progress that has been 

added to update the 

transition plan. 



Disability Access Consultants Proposal to the City of Sierra Madre for ADA Consulting Services 20 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This screenshot is 

an example of a 

finding page in a 

Dual Photo Report.  

This type of report 

shows the user two 

findings per page, 

with accompanying 

recommendations 

to correct the non-

compliant item, the 

associated photo, 

code reference(s), 

and estimated cost 

to remove the 

barrier. 



Disability Access Consultants Proposal to the City of Sierra Madre for ADA Consulting Services 21 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

The Dual Photo and Basic Photo Reports may be exported to an Excel workbook for easy management of the 
transition plan data.  The Excel workbook exports into a pre-formatted table with the filter function atop each 
data column.  The report is a fully functioning Excel spreadsheet that may be sorted, filtered and manipulated 
by the user.  The column for Picture identification numbers includes cells that are live links to the second tab 
of the workbook which contains report photos.  Clicking the cell for a particular report finding will bring up the 
associated picture on the Photos tab. 



Disability Access Consultants Proposal to the City of Sierra Madre for ADA Consulting Services 22 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 

Users can update 
progress using the 
Tools drop down 
menu. 

Record Manager 
allows each record 
to be updated 
individually. 

Global Progress 
Editor allows many 
records to be 
updated at once 
with identical 
information. 

Priority Manager 
allows many 
records to be 
updated at once 
with unique 
information. 

Record Manager 

allows the user 

to choose which 

record to update 

individually. 



Disability Access Consultants Proposal to the City of Sierra Madre for ADA Consulting Services 23 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Once a record is 

chosen in Record 

Manager, the user 

can set the priority, 

select the status of 

progress, add 

projected and actual 

dates of completion 

and also document 

any notes regarding 

the record. 

This screen shot 

represents an example 

of a record with 

progress, updates and 

comments added. 



Disability Access Consultants Proposal to the City of Sierra Madre for ADA Consulting Services 24 
 

             
      

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
  

All comments saved using the Update 

command are shown under the finding.  

All new comments that are added will 

also be listed in this area. 

An Administrator is able to view 

findings related to the same element 

by using the advance controls, also 

located under the tool bar at the top of 

the page. 

Projected and actual dates of 

completion are entered here.  The 

Administrator can also add the actual 

cost of bringing the element into 

compliance for budgeting and expense 

reporting. 

A priority level of 1 through 7 can be 

assigned to the element. 

New Comments can be added here and 

saved using the Update command. 

Record Manager gives an Administrator the most 

options to examine, manage and update the 

transition plan for the selected site. 



Disability Access Consultants Proposal to the City of Sierra Madre for ADA Consulting Services 25 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This is an example of 

Global Progress Editor, 

where the user may 

select many records to 

update at one time.  In 

this example, the 

category has been 

filtered to Passenger 

Loading Zones using the 

Categories drop down 

menu. 

This is an example of 

Priority Manager, where 

the user may select 

many records to update 

with unique information 

from one screen.  The 

user may select 

progress information 

from the drop down 

menus and enter dates 

for each line item.  All 

information is updated 

with one click of the 

Submit button.  In this 

example, the category 

has been filtered to 

Sinks using the 

Categories drop down 

menu. 



Disability Access Consultants Proposal to the City of Sierra Madre for ADA Consulting Services 26 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

When GPS information is recorded for the location of an outdoor finding, such as the sidewalk report below, a 

Map Overlay report is available to view on DACTrak.  This report shows a map of the area where the survey 

was performed, and pinpoints the location of the finding.  Clicking on the pinpoint brings up a screen showing 

the finding, recommendation to bring the item into compliance, a photo of the finding and the associated 

code references. 

 



Disability Access Consultants Proposal to the City of Sierra Madre for ADA Consulting Services 27 
 

 
 
 

 

By clicking on the photo number, the 

Administrator can view more than one 

photo within the same screen. 














































































































































































































































































































































































































































































	City Council Meeting Agenda 2016-0510
	Unapproved City Council Meeting Minutes 2016-0426
	1a - Approving Certain Demands
	1b - Revised Volumetric Penalty Rate
	1c - Professional Services Agreement with Willdan
	1d - Part-Time Paramedic Program
	1e - Americans with Disability Act Evaluation
	ADA1
	Attachment - ADA Self-Evaluation & Transition Plan

	1f - Approval of Expenditure for 5-Cities Alliance
	5 citites 1
	5 citites 23

	2 - Mid Year Budget Review FY 2015-2016
	3 - FY 2016-2017 Assessment Districts
	4 - City Clerk Compensation
	CCC
	CCC2

	5 - City Council Liaison Appointments

